
   
 
 
 

Community Development Department 

100 N. Midwest Blvd, Midwest City, OK 

To make a special assistance request, call 739-1220 or email dyoung@midwestcityok.org no less than 24 hours prior to 
the start of a meeting. 

 
AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE  

MIDWEST CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 
August 5, 2025 – 5:00 p.m. 

City Council Chambers 
City Hall 

100 North Midwest Boulevard 
 

For purposes of all meetings of the Midwest City elected and/or appointed officials, the term “possible action” shall mean 
possible adoption, rejection, amendments, and/or postponements. 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. MINUTES 
1. Discussion and consideration of adoption, including any possible amendments of the minutes of the 

July 1, 2025, Planning Commission Meeting. 
 

C. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
1. Introduction of new staff 
 

D. DISCUSSION 
1. (PC-2220) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action to consider approval of the 

Final Plat of Cypress Village, for the property located at 1120 S. Post Road & 10100 SE 10th Street, 
Midwest City, Oklahoma. 

2. (PC-2221) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action to consider approval of a 
Special Use Permit (SUP) to allow Eating Establishments: Sit-Down, Alcoholic Beverages Permitted 
in the C-3 (Community Commercial District) for the property located at 2113 S. Air Depot Blvd, 
Midwest City, Oklahoma.   

3. (PC-2222) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action on an ordinance to redistrict 
from C-3 (Community Commercial District) to PUD (Planned Unit Development), for the property 
described as Lots 1, 2, 3, 24, 25, and 26 of Block 3 of Aviation Acres Addition, Oklahoma County, 
Oklahoma.   
 

E. COMMISSION DISCUSSION 
 

F. PUBLIC DISCUSSION 
 
 

mailto:dyoung@midwestcityok.org


 
 
 

G. FURTHER INFORMATION 
1. (PC-2217) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action on a resolution to amend 

the Comprehensive Plan from Office/Retail to Commercial; and an ordinance to redistrict from C-3 
(Community Commercial District) to PUD (Planned Unit Development), for the property located at 
2300 and 2350 S. Midwest Blvd., Midwest City, Oklahoma.   

 
H. ADJOURN 



 

 

 

MINUTES OF MIDWEST CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 

DATE July 1, 2025 - 5:00 p.m. 
 

This regular meeting of the Midwest City Planning Commission was held in the City Council Chambers, 100 North 

Midwest Boulevard, Midwest City, Oklahoma County, Oklahoma, on July 1, 2025 at 5:00 p.m., with the following 

members present: 

 

Commissioners present:  Jess Huskey 

Dean Hinton 

    Russell Smith Chairman 

    Rick Rice 

    JD Collins 

 

Commissioners absent: Jim Smith 

    Rick Dawkins 

     

  Staff present:   Matthew Summers, Community Development Director 

      Julie Shannon, Planner III 

      Brylee Hester, Planner I 

Don Maisch, City Attorney      

   

   

A. CALL TO ORDER   

 

The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Russell Smith at 5:03 p.m. 

 

B. MINUTES 

A motion was made by Husky seconded by Hinton, to approve the minutes of the June 3, 2025 Planning 

Commission meeting as presented.  

Voting Aye: Huskey, Hinton, R. Smith, Collins and Rice  

Nay: none.  

Motion carried.  

 

C. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Community Development Director Matt Summers introduced new Planner I, Brylee Hester. 

 

D. NEW MATTERS 

 
1. (MP-00024) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action to consider approval of the 

Minor Plat of MWC Scooters for the property described as a tract of land in the Northeast Quarter 

(NE/4) of Section Eleven (11), Township Eleven (11) North, Range Two (2) West of the Indian 

Meridian, Oklahoma County, Oklahoma.  

 

Director Matt Summers presented the item.  Developer Jeff Johnson said he had no issues with the 

staff report. There was general discussion amongst the Commission. 

 

A motion was made by Rice, seconded by Huskey to recommend approval of this item.  

 



Planning Commission Minutes    Page 2 
July 1, 2025 

 

Voting aye:  Huskey, Hinton, R. Smith, Collins, and Rice. 

Nay: None.    

Motion Carried. 

  
2. (PC-2218) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action on an ordinance to abandon the 

Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) and nullify the PUD Master Plan and rezone to the underlying 

Medium Density Residential District (“R-MD”) under Section 7.3.4. (A) of Appendix A of the Midwest 

City Municipal Code, for the property located at 2222 N. Douglas Blvd., Midwest City, Oklahoma.  

 

Director Summers and City Attorney Maisch explained that the PUD had been originally requested 

by a previous property owner and was no longer a viable project, so the current owner wished to 

vacate or abandon the PUD and only utilize the current base zoning. The owner’s representative, 

Andrew Martin, had no issues with the staff report.  There was general discussion about the request 

amongst the Commission.   

 

A motion was made by Rice, seconded by Hinton to recommend approval of this item.  

 

Voting aye: Huskey, Hinton, R. Smith, Collins, and Rice. 

Nay: None.    

Motion Carried. 

  

 

E. COMMISSION DISCUSSION: Planning Commissioners engaged in further discussion about the 

history of the property discussed in item two. 

 

E. PUBLIC DISCUSSION: None. 

 

F. FURTHER INFORMATION:   

 

Items will be heard at City Council on July 22, 2025. 

 

G. ADJOURNMENT: 

 

A motion to adjourn was made by Collins, Seconded by Rice. 

 

Voting aye: Huskey, Hinton, R. Smith, Collins and Rice  

Nay: None.   

Motion Carried. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 5:16 p.m.  

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

 

Chairman Russell Smith (Chair) 

(js) 



   
 
 
 

Community Development Department 

100 N. Midwest Blvd, Midwest City, OK 

To:  Chairman and Planning Commission 

From:  Matt Summers, Community Development Director  

Date:  August 5, 2025 

Subject: (PC-2220) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action to consider approval of 
the Final Plat of Cypress Village, for the property located at 1120 S. Post Road & 10100 SE 10th Street, 
Midwest City, Oklahoma. 

Executive Summary:  The Applicant is 
requesting approval of the Final Plat of Cypress 
Village. 

This final plat includes seventy (70) residential 
lots and two (2) common area lots with a total area 
of 8.35 acres. 

Staff performed their standard review of the final 
plat. All Zoning and Engineering requirements 
have been met. 

Development of the residential units is subject to 
formal site plan review when building permits are 
applied for. 

The Applicant and Community Development 
Director have agreed upon the fee in-lieu amount 
for parkland dedication for the subject property.  
This fee must be paid before the plat is recorded.   

Both state and local notification requirements were met.  At the time of this writing, staff has not received any 
calls or emails in favor or opposition of this proposal. 

Staff recommends approval of this item. 

Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission.  

Dates of Hearing: 
Planning Commission- August 5, 2025  
City Council- August 26, 2025 
 
Date of Pre-Application Meeting: May 13, 2025    
 
Date of Site Plan Review Team Meeting: June 24, 2025         
                                                                 
Council Ward: Ward 6, Rick Favors 

Owner: Cypress MWC, LLC 



Page 2                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2220 
 
Applicant: Cypress MWC, LLC 

Size: Contains an area of 8.35 acres MOL 

Zoning Districts: 
Area of Request: PUD (Underlying R-MD)  
North:    R-6 
South:    PUD  (Underlying C-3)  
East:    R-6  
West:    R-6 & C-3 
 
Land Use: 
Area of Request:  Vacant 
North:    Single Family Detached Residential 
South:    Undeveloped 
East:    Single Family Detached Residential 
West:    Office/Retail & Church 

 
Municipal Code Citation: 
Sec. 38-19 – Final Plat 

Sec. 38-19.1.  Purpose. 
The purpose of a final plat is to ensure: 
(a)  Consistency with standards. That the proposed subdivision and development of the land 

is consistent with all standards of this Subdivision Ordinance pertaining to the adequacy 
of public facilities; 

(b)  Provide for public improvements. That public improvements to serve the subdivision or 
development have been installed and accepted by the city or that provision for such 
installation has been made; and 

(c)  Other requirements and conditions. That all other requirements and conditions have been 
satisfied or provided for to allow the final plat to be recorded. 

History: 
1. This area was platted as part of the Leavitt’s SE 15th Street Ares, approved in February 1949.   
2. June 2004 – (PC-1536) A PUD was approved for the property to the south of the subject property and 

included a portion of the southeast corner of the subject property.   
3. July 5, 2011 – (PC-1743) A PUD was approved allowing for R-6 and C-3 zoning.   
4. August 23, 2011 (PC-1746) A preliminary plat including the subject property was approved.   
5. January 10, 2012 (PC-1757) A final plat including the subject property was approved.   
6. January 10, 2013 The approved final plat approval became void as the plat was not filed within one (1) 

year of approval as required by the Subdivision Regulations.   
7. July 2014 (PC-1743) The governing PUD master plan expired due to inaction within the three year 

required timeline in accordance with 7.3.2. (b)(3) of the 2010 Zoning Regulations.   
8. The property was rezoned to a PUD in March 2021 (PC-2069).   
9. December 2021 (PC-2101) The Planning Commission approved the preliminary plat for the subject 

property  
Next Steps: 
If Council approves this final plat, the applicant will need to file the plat with all required signatures with 
Oklahoma County, then provide the City a copy of the filed plat (digital). After filed copy is received, new 
construction building permits can be pulled.  



Page 3                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2220 
 
 
Staff Comments- 
There are numerous construction requirement references made in the Engineering, Fire Marshal, and Public 
Works portions of this report. The intent of the Municipal Code is to directly involve the applicant in continued 
community development activities such as extending public sewer and water and making street improvements, 
for examples. This is a final plat application and the construction references are provided to make the applicant 
and subsequent developers of this property aware of their applicability as they relate to the future development 
or redevelopment of this property. 
 
Engineering Staff Comments: 
Note: This application is for the final plat of the Cypress Village subdivision located along the east side of Post 
Road and S.E. 10th Street.   

Public Improvements 
The requirements of the public improvements can be found in the subdivision regulations under: 

Sec. 38-30.1. Completion prior to final plat approval and recordation.  

(a) Construction required prior to final plat approval and recordation. Completion of all required public 
improvements, in accordance with the approved preliminary plat and the approved construction plans, 
shall occur prior to final plat approval and recordation.  

(b) Final plat shall not be accepted. A final plat shall not be accepted for filing, nor shall it be considered 
for approval, prior to completion of all required public improvements.  

Upon application of final plat, this office reviewed all the public improvements for compliance with the 
subdivision regulations. 

Water 
Water line improvements were permitted through this office and Oklahoma Department of 
Environmental Quality (ODEQ).  Construction of the improvements were inspected by the Construction 
Inspector and completed. 

Sanitary Sewer 
Sanitary Sewer improvements were permitted through this office and Oklahoma Department of 
Environmental Quality (ODEQ).  Construction of the improvements were inspected by the Construction 
Inspector and completed. 

Stormwater 
Stormwater improvements were permitted through this office.  Construction of the improvements were 
inspected by the Construction Inspector and completed. 

Street 
The new roadway improvements were permitted through this office.  Construction of the improvements 
were inspected by the Construction Inspector and completed. 

Sidewalk 
The sidewalks were permitted through this office.  The sidewalk has been approved but the developer 
will install it during the home building process.  Construction of the sidewalk at the time of this 
summary it has not been completed. 



Page 4                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2220 
 
Easements 

Subdivision Regulations requires that all existing, dedicated, and proposed rights-of-way and easements 
are depicted on the final plat.  These dedications are reflected on the final plat.   

Lighting 
Public street lighting has been ordered but has not been installed in the development.  The developer will 
be responsible for installing any lighting in the development. 

Signage 
Public signage has been ordered but has not been installed in the development.  The developer will be 
responsible for installing street signage in the development. 

Record Drawings, Lien Release, and Bonding 
Record drawings are being submitted to the City and filed accordingly.  Bonds were provided for all the 
public infrastructure and lien releases has been received. 

 
Fire Marshal’s Comments: 
Fire hydrants are required to be flushed if not already completed.   
 
Planning Division: 
This final plat includes seventy (70) residential lots and two (2) common area lots.  The lot sizes, setbacks, and 
densities are consistent with what was approved with the preliminary plat (PC-2101).   
 
This development will have vehicular access from S. Post Road and SE 10th Street.  This complies with the 
requirement for a secondary access for a subdivision creating more than 50 lots.   
 
The subject property was approved, by the Park Land Review Committee (in October 2021) to pay a fee in-lieu 
of park land dedication.  The Applicant and Community Development Director have agreed upon the applicable 
fee for this project.  The Applicant must pay this fee before the final plat can be recorded.   
 
The Subdivision Regulations, and the preliminary plat approval, require thoroughfare screening for the subject 
property.  This consists of a masonry wall and trees along both S. Post Road and SE 10th Street.   
 
Development of the residential units are subject to formal site plan review when building permits are applied 
for. 
 
The City Attorney reviewed the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions.   
 
Based on the analysis above, and the application’s compliance with the PUD and preliminary plat, staff 
recommends approval of this application.   
 
Action is at the discretion of the Commission.  
 
Action Required: 
Approve or reject the Final Plat of Cypress Village for the property noted herein, subject to staff comments as 
found in the August 5, 2025, Planning Commission agenda packet and made part of the PC-2220 file.  
 



Page 5                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2220 
 
Suggested Motion: 
“To approve the Final Plat of Cypress Village for the property noted herein, subject to staff comments 
found in the August 5, 2025, Planning Commission agenda packet and made part of the PC-2220 file.” 
 
Please feel free to contact the Community Development office at (405) 739-1220 with any questions. 
 

 
Matt Summers, AICP 
Community Development Director 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 



Page 6                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2220 
 

 



Page 7                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2220 
 

 



Page 8                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2220 
 

 



Page 9                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2220 
 

 



Page 10                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2220 
 

 



Page 11                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2220 
 

 



Public Works 
Administration 

8730 S.E. 15th Street 
Midwest City, OK 

www.midwestcityok.org 

 

NOTICE OF ACCEPTANCE 
  
                                                                                                   

Date: July 28th, 2025 
 
RE:  Cypress Village Addition 

 
Cypress MWC LLC: 
 

 
I want to inform you that the infrastructure built to service the Cypress Village Addition 
development located along S.E. 10th Street and Post Road has been inspected by the City’s 
Engineering staff and was constructed to meet the City’s standards.  Along with construction being 
complete, staff has received as-builts and lien releases for the improvements.  All necessary 
materials will be submitted for acceptance by the City Council on August 26th, 2025, closing the 
project. 

This infrastructure includes:  

• Water line extensions within the development. 
• Sewer line extensions within the development. 
• Street and storm drainage extensions within the development. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Patrick Menefee, P.E., 
City Engineer 
 
 

 

http://www.midwestcityok.org/


   
 
 
 

Community Development Department 

100 N. Midwest Blvd, Midwest City, OK 

To:  Chairman and Planning Commission 

From:  Matt Summers, Community Development Director  

Date:  August 5, 2025 

Subject: (PC-2221) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action to consider approval of 
a Special Use Permit (SUP) to allow Eating Establishments: Sit-Down, Alcoholic Beverages Permitted in the C-
3 (Community Commercial District) for the property located at 2113 S. Air Depot Blvd, Midwest City, 
Oklahoma. 

Executive Summary:  The Applicant is 
requesting approval of a Special Use Permit for 
the subject property to allow Eating 
Establishments: Sit-Down, Alcoholic Beverages 
Permitted in the C-3 district. 

The subject property was granted a permanent 
Certificate of Occupancy for Star KTV on January 
27, 2025.  The applicant would like to add the 
service of alcoholic beverages to the location.  A 
similar application was considered by the City 
Council in March 2025.  This application proposes 
hours of operation from 11 AM – 2 AM; and 
restricting access after 10 PM to those 21 years of 
age and older.   

Staff has received confirmation from the ABLE 
Commission that the applicant can be issued a 
license from the Commission.   

Both state and local notification requirements were met.  At the time of this writing, staff received one (1) 
phone call from an owner of surrounding property in opposition to the proposal. 

Staff recommends approval of this item. 

Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission.  

Dates of Hearing: 
Planning Commission- August 5, 2025  
City Council- August 26, 2025 
 
Date of Pre-Application Meeting: June 3, 2025    
 
Date of Site Plan Review Team Meeting: June 24, 2025         
                                                                 
 



Page 2                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2221 
 
Council Ward: Ward 1, Susan Eads 

Owner: Henry Pham, Phamily Properties LLC 

Applicant: Henry Pham, Phamily Properties LLC 

Zoning Districts: 
Area of Request: C-3  
North:    C-3 
South:    C-3  
East:    R-6  
West:    C-3 
 
Land Use: 
Area of Request:  Office/Retail 
North:    Office/Retail 
South:    Office/Retail 
East:    Single Family Detached Residential 
West:    Commercial 

 
Municipal Code Citation: 
7.6. – Special Use Permit 
7.6.1. General Description and Authorization. The uses listed under the various districts 

as special use permits are so classified because they more intensely dominate the area in which they are 
located than do other uses permitted in the district. 
(A) Consideration for compatibility. With consideration given to setting, physical features, 

compatibility with surrounding land uses, traffic, and aesthetics, certain uses may locate in an 
area where they will be compatible with existing or planned land uses. 

(B)  Review and approval. The Planning Commission shall review each case on its own merit, apply 
the criteria established herein, and recommend either approval or denial of 
the special use permit to the City Council. Following the Planning Commission's 
recommendation, the City Council shall review each case on its own merit, apply the criteria 
established herein, and, if appropriate, authorize said use by granting a special use permit. 

(C)  Use identified by individual zoning district. If a special use permit is granted it shall be for all 
the uses permitted in the specified district plus the special use permit requested. 

 
7.6.2. Application. Application and public hearing procedures for a special permit shall be completed in the 

same manner as an application for rezoning. A site plan shall be included with the application as 
outlined in 7.5 Site Plan (Page 183). 

7.6.3.  Criteria for Special Permit Approval. 
(A) Special use permit criteria. The City Council shall use the following criteria to evaluate 

a special use permit: 
(1) Whether the proposed use shall be in harmony with the policies of the comprehensive 

plan. 
(2)  Whether the proposed use shall be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the 

applicable zoning district regulations. 
(3)  Whether the proposed use shall not adversely affect the use of neighboring properties. 



Page 3                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2221 
 

(4)  Whether the proposed use shall not generate pedestrian and vehicular traffic that is 
hazardous or in conflict with the existing and anticipated traffic in the neighborhood. 

(5)  Whether utility, drainage, parking, loading, signs, lighting access and other necessary 
public facilities to serve the proposed use shall meet the adopted codes of the city. 

(B) Specific conditions. The City Council may impose specific conditions regarding: 
(1)  The duration of the permit; 
(2)  The location, design, operation, and screening to assure safety;  
(3)  To prevent a nuisance; 
(4)  To control the noxious effects of excessive sound, light, odor, dust or similar conditions; 

and 
(5) The hours of operation for any applicant receiving a special use permit. 

 
7.6.4. Status of Special Use Permits.  Once a special use permit has been granted for a lot, 

said special use permit may not be expanded to another lot without application for a 
new special use permit. 

 
Provided, however, churches may expand if the property on which said church will be located is owned, 
as reflected by official records kept by the Registrar of Deeds for Oklahoma County, Oklahoma, on or 
prior to June 22, 1982. 

 
7.6.5.  Expiration of Special Use Permits.  All special use permits shall expire by default: 

(A)  Non-establishment. 
(1)  If the use is not established within twelve (12) months and no extension is approved. 
(2)  When a building permit has not been issued for construction within twelve (12) months 

of City Council approval the applicant or owner may request a hearing for an extension 
of the initial special use permit approval. 

(3)  Good cause for an extension shall mean that the owner shows evidence that he has 
contractors or applications for continual development within the next year following the original 
approval. 

(B)  Discontinuance. If the use once established has been discontinued for a period of twelve (12) 
months or abandoned. 

(C)  Lack of substantial compliance. Whenever the Community Development Director finds that any 
proposed construction or occupancy will not, in his opinion, substantially comply with 
the special use permit, he shall refer the question to the City Council for its review. 

(D)  Amendment. When the holder of a special use permit determines that an extension of time or 
modification of the use is necessary, he may apply for amendment in the same manner as the 
original application. The amendment shall be processed in the same manner as an original 
application. 

 
The following uses are permitted in the C-3, Community Commercial District with a Special Use Permit: 
 
4.4.28. Eating Establishments: Sit-Down, Alcoholic Beverages Permitted. Establishments or places of business 

where customers are seated and served, and are engaged in the sale, mixing or dispensing of beverages 
containing alcohol by weight, or wine capable of being consumed as a beverage or any kind of on-
premises consumption as accessory to a restaurant operation. All requirements of Title 37A of the 
Oklahoma Statutes and Chapter 5 of the Midwest City Code must be met.  

 



Page 4                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2221 
 
4.4.42. Participant Recreation and Entertainment: Indoor. Those participant recreation and entertainment uses 

conducted within an enclosed building. 
 
History: 

1. The subject property was zoned C-3 with the adoption of the 1985 Zoning Map.   
2. A special use permit for Brielle’s Bistro was approved September 2021.  Official’s Sports Bard operated 

in conjunction with Brielle’s, however, utility services were terminated and the Special Use Permit 
expired.   

3. March 2025 (PC-22017) City Council denied an application for a special use permit to allow 4.4.28. 
Eating Establishments: Sit-Down, Alcoholic Beverages Permitted on the subject property.   

 
Next Steps: 
If Council approves this special use permit, the applicant will need to obtain their State Liquor License and City 
Occupational License.  
 
Staff Comments- 
There are numerous construction requirement references made in the Engineering, Fire Marshal, and Public 
Works portions of this report. The intent of the Municipal Code is to directly involve the applicant in continued 
community development activities such as extending public sewer and water and making street improvements, 
for examples. This is a special use permit application and the construction references are provided to make the 
applicant and subsequent developers of this property aware of their applicability as they relate to the future 
development or redevelopment of this property. 
 
 
Engineering Staff Comments: 
Note: No engineering improvements are required with this application.  

Water Supply and Distribution  

There is a public water main bordering the proposed parcel, a twelve (12) inch line running along the east side 
of Air Depot Boulevard.  Any new building permit will require tying to the public water system as outlined in 
Municipal Code 43-32.  

Sanitary Sewerage Collection and Disposal  

There is a public sewer main servicing the proposed parcel, an eight (8) inch line running along the west side of 
the parcel.  Any new building permit will require tying into the public sewer system as outlined in Municipal 
Code 43-109.  

Streets and Sidewalks  

Access to the parcel is available from Air Depot Boulevard, respectively.  Air Depot Boulevard is classified as a 
secondary arterial in the 2008 Comprehensive Plan.  Public road and sidewalk improvements are not required as 
part of this application.   

Drainage and Flood Control, Wetlands, and Sediment Control  

The area of request is shown to be in an Area of Minimal Flood Hazard on Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 
number 40109C0310H, dated December 18th, 2009.  Public drainage and detention improvements are not 
required as part of this application.  



Page 5                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2221 
 
 

Easements and Right-of-Way  

No further easements or right of way would be required with this application. 

 
 
Fire Marshal’s Comments: 
No comments. 
 
 
Planning Division: 
The subject property has a Certificate of Occupancy, and currently operates as a restaurant with private karaoke 
rooms.  If this application is approved, the applicant would be allowed to add alcohol sales as part of the 
restaurant operations.  The applicant is proposing operating hours of 11 AM – 2 AM, and restricting access after 
10 PM to persons 21 years of age or older.   
 
The proposed hours of operation and age restrictions would allow the site to operate in a more consistent 
manner with existing businesses on the S. Air Depot Blvd. corridor than the application considered by the City 
Council in March 2025.  This site has previously been approved as a restaurant with alcoholic beverage sales.   
 
The subject property is mostly surrounded by properties zoned for commercial uses, with the exception of the 
residential properties on the east side of S. Air Depot Blvd.  This application should have minimal impacts on 
surrounding property owners 
 
Analyzing the criteria required by Section 7.6.3. (A) of Appendix A of the Midwest City Municipal Code: 

1. The proposed use is in harmony with he policies of the Comprehensive Plan.   
2. The proposed use is in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the C-3 zoning district.   
3. The proposed use should not adversely affect the use of the neighboring properties.   
4. The proposed use will not generate pedestrian and vehicular traffic that is hazardous or in conflict with 

the existing or anticipated traffic in the area.   
5. The utility, drainage, parking, loading, signs, lighting access and other public facilities needed to serve 

the proposed use are available on the subject property.   
 
Staff recommends the following conditions be imposed on an approval of this application for a special use 
permit for the subject property.   

1. The permit shall become null and void upon change in occupancy of the subject property.   
2. The hours of operation on the subject property shall not extend past 2 AM.   
3. After 10 PM, no persons under the age of 21 years shall be allowed.   

 
Based on the analysis above, staff recommends approval of this application with the conditions outlined.   
 
Action is at the discretion of the Commission.  
 
Action Required: 
Approve or reject the Special Use Permit for the property noted herein, subject to staff comments as found in 
the August 5, 2025, Planning Commission agenda packet and made part of the PC-2221 file.  



Page 6                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2221 
 
 
Suggested Motion: 
“To approve the Special Use Permit for the property noted herein, subject to staff comments found in the 
August 5, 2025, Planning Commission agenda packet and made part of the PC-2221 file.” 
 
Please feel free to contact the Community Development office at (405) 739-1220 with any questions. 
 

 
Matt Summers, AICP 
Community Development Director 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 



Page 7                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2221 
 

 



Page 8                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2221 
 

 



Page 9                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2221 
 

 



Page 10                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2221 
 

 



Page 11                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2221 
 

 



Page 12                                                                                                                                              August 5, 2025              
PC-2221 
 

 



   
 
 
 

Community Development Department 

100 N. Midwest Blvd, Midwest City, OK 

sTo:  Chairman and Planning Commission 

From:  Matt Summers, Community Development Director  

Date:  August 5, 2025 

Subject: (PC-2222) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action on an ordinance to 
redistrict from C-3 (Community Commercial District) to PUD (Planned Unit Development), for the property 
described as Lots 1, 2, 3, 24, 25, and 26 of Block 3 of Aviation Acres Addition, Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. 

Executive Summary: The applicant is requesting to 
rezone the subject property from C-3 to PUD, Planned 
Unit Development, governed by the C-3 (Community 
Commercial) District. 

The site is approximately 4.54 acres in size and is 
located on the east side of S. Midwest Boulevard.  

The proposed PUD would allow for further development 
of the site.  The proposed amendments to the sign and 
exterior design standards are appropriate and would help 
to enhance the SE 15th Street corridor.   

Both state and local notification requirements were met.  
At the time of this writing, staff has not received any 
phone calls from surrounding property owners regarding 
this application. 

Based on the analysis in the staff report, staff 
recommends approval of this application.     

Action is at the discretion of the Commission.    

 
Dates of Hearing:   Planning Commission- August 5, 2025 

City Council- August 26, 2025 

Pre-Application Meeting Date: June 11, 2025  
 
Council Ward:    Ward 1, Susan Eads 

Owner:     Sooner Baptist Church (rep: John Hutchinson) 

Applicant:     Chris Rogers, Quiddity Engineering (Letter of Authorization on file) 

Proposed Use:    Financial Institution 
 



Page 2                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 
Size: The subject property contains an area of 4.54 Acres, more or less.  
 
Development Proposed by Comprehensive Plan:  
Area of Request: Office / Retail 
North:   Office / Retail 
South:   Public / Semi-Public 
East:   Office / Retail & High Density Residential 
West:   Commercial 
 
Zoning Districts:  
Area of Request: C-3 
North:   PUD (Underlying C-3) 
South:   HOS 
East:   C-4 & HOS 
West:   C-3 
 
Land Use:  
Area of Request: Office / Retail 
North:   Office / Retail 
South:   Restaurant 
East:   Office / Retail & Undeveloped 
West:   Commercial 
Municipal Code Citation: 
2.25.  PUD, Planned Unit Development 
2.25.1. General Provisions. The planned unit development, herein referred to as PUD, is a special zoning 

district category that provides an alternate approach to conventional land use controls to produce unique, 
creative, progressive, or quality land developments. 

 
The PUD may be used for particular tracts or parcels of land that are under common ownership and are 
to be developed as one unit according to a master development plan. 

 
The PUD is subject to special review procedures within 7.3 PUD Application and Review (Page 174), 
and once approved by the City Council it becomes a special zoning classification for the property it 
represents. 

 
2.25.2. Intent and Purpose. The intent and purpose of the planned unit development provisions are as follows: 

(A) Innovative land development. Encourage innovative land development while maintaining 
appropriate limitations on the character and intensity of use, assuring compatibility with 
adjoining and proximate properties, and following the guidelines of the Comprehensive Plan. 

(B) Flexibility within developments. Permit flexibility within the development to maximize the 
unique physical features of the particular site. 

(C) Efficient use of land. Encourage efficient use of land, facilitate economic arrangement of 
buildings and circulation systems, and encourage diversified living environments and land uses. 

(D) Function, design, and diversity. Achieve a continuity of function and design within 
the development and encourage diversified living environments and land uses. 

https://library.municode.com/ok/midwest_city/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COMIOKVOII_APXAZORE_S7DEREPR_7.3PUAPRE


Page 3                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 

(E) Modifications to development requirements. Provide a vehicle for negotiating modifications in 
standard development requirements in order to both encourage innovative development and 
protect the health, safety and welfare of the community. 

 
Comprehensive Plan Citation 
The Future Land Use designation for the subject property is Office/Retail.  The uses proposed by 
this application are supported by the current designation.   
 
Office/Retail Land Uses 
Retail land uses areas are intended to provide for a variety of retail trade, personal, and business 
services and establishments. Retail establishments generally require greater visibility than do 
other types of non-residential land uses (e.g., office, commercial). Office uses include 
professional offices for lawyers, doctors, realtors, and other professionals. Office land uses are 
generally appropriate in all other non-residential areas of the City. Office development should be 
compatible with any adjacent residential area. 

 
History: 

1. The subject property is part of the Aviation Acres Subdivision approved in 1944. 
2. In December 2024 (PC-2189) the subject property was rezoned to C-3.   

 
Next Steps: 
If Council approves this rezone, the Applicant can proceed with the appropriate platting approval process and 
building permits. 

Staff Comments- 

There are numerous construction requirement references made in the Engineering, Fire Marshal, and Public 
Works portions of this report. The intent of the Municipal Code is to directly involve the Applicant in continued 
community development activities such as extending public sewer and water and making street improvements, 
for example. This is a rezoning application, and the construction references are provided to make the Applicant 
and subsequent developers of this property aware of their applicability as they relate to the future development 
or redevelopment of this property. 

 
Engineering Staff Comments: 
Note: No engineering improvements are required with this application.  

Water Supply and Distribution  

There are public water mains bordering the proposed parcel, a twelve (12) inch line along the south side of S.E. 
15th Street and a six (6) inch line along the west side of Warren Drive.  Any new building permit will require 
tying to the public water system as outlined in Municipal Code 43-32.  

Sanitary Sewerage Collection and Disposal  

There is an eight (8) inch public sewer main located in the southeast corner of the proposed parcel.  Any new 
building permit will require tying into the public sewer system as outlined in Municipal Code 43-109.  



Page 4                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 
Streets and Sidewalks  

Access to the parcel is from S.E. 15th Street and from Warren Drive.  S.E. 15th Street is classified as a 
secondary arterial road in the 2008 Comprehensive Plan.  Warren Drive is classified as a local road in the 2008 
Comprehensive Plan.    Public road and sidewalk improvements are not required as part of this application.  
There is no sidewalk across the full frontage of the parcel.  Any new building permit will require sidewalk 
across the full frontage of the proposed parcel. 

Drainage and Flood Control, Wetlands, and Sediment Control  

The area of request is shown to be in an Area of Minimal Flood Hazard on Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 
number 40109C0310H, dated December 18th, 2009.  Public drainage and detention improvements are not 
required as part of this application.  

Easements and Right-of-Way  

No further easements or right of way are not required with this application. 

 

Fire Marshal’s Comments: 

No comments from the Fire Marshal on this application. 

Planning Division: 

Staff met with the Applicant on June 11, 2025, for a pre-application meeting.  The Site Plan Review Team met 
June 24th to review this application.   

PUD Review: 

The following is a summary of the areas of the development regulations the PUD proposes to amend for 
analysis.  Please refer to the PUD Master Plan for the full text of the design statement.   
 
Exterior Construction and Design Regulations: 

• Exterior of new buildings to consist of seventy (70) percent masonry materials.   
• Decorative glass on the building vestibule to be counted towards masonry requirements. 

Sign Regulations: 

• One (1) permanent off-premises advertising sign identifying the two uses/entities within the 
development shall be allowed on the property near the south right-of-way line of SE 15th Street.   

This PUD application is proposed to facilitate the further development of the subject property.  This site was 
approved for rezoning to C-3 in 2024.  This PUD application is proposed to allow for a unique approach to 
signage for the development and to facilitate an attractive building design.   

The proposed sign would be an attractive sign for this corridor and allow the advertisement of both occupants of 
the district.  The proposed alteration of the exterior design regulations would allow the construction of a 
building with a modern design style featuring a glass vestibule.   

Staff recommends approval of this application based on its compliance with the Comprehensive Plan and 
analysis of the PUD Master Plan.   

Action is at the discretion of the Planning Commission. 



Page 5                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 
Action Required 
Approve or reject an ordinance to amend the zoning map from C-3 to PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
governed by C-3 (Community Commercial District) for the property noted herein, subject to staff comments as 
found in the August 5, 2025, Planning Commission agenda packet and made part of the PC-2222 file. 

Suggested Motion: 

“To approve an ordinance to amend the zoning map to Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) for the subject 
property, subject to staff comments as found in the August 5, 2025, Planning Commission agenda packet and 
made part of the PC-2222 file.” 

Please feel free to contact the Community Development Department at (405) 739-1228 with any questions. 
 

 
Matt Summers, AICP 

Community Development Director 



Page 6                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 

 



Page 7                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 



Page 8                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 



Page 9                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 



Page 10                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 

 

 



Page 11                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 

 

 



Page 12                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 

 



Page 13                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 

 



Page 14                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 

 

 



Page 15                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 

 

 



Page 16                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 

 

 



Page 17                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 

 



Page 18                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 

 

 



Page 19                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 

 



Page 20                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 

 

 

 



Page 21                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 

 

 



Page 22                                                                                                                                         August 5, 2025              
PC-2222 

 



100 N. Midwest Boulevard • Midwest City, OK 73110 
Community Development (405) 739-1220 

To: Chairman and Planning Commission  
From: Matt Summers, Community Development Director 
Date: August 5, 2025 
Subject: (PC-2217) Public hearing, discussion, consideration, and possible action on a 

resolution to amend the Comprehensive Plan from Office/Retail to Commercial; 
and an ordinance to redistrict from C-3 (Community Commercial District) to 
PUD (Planned Unit Development), for the property located at 2300 and 2350 S. 
Midwest Blvd., Midwest City, Oklahoma. 

Staff and the Applicant have agreed to take no action on agenda item PC-2217 and move the 
item to the September Planning Commission agenda.  The Applicant requested hearings on this 
item be postponed via email on July 28, 2025.   

Taking no action on this agenda item does not require action by the Planning Commission.  Staff 
will send notifications via mail to property owners within 300 feet and have the notification 
published in the newspaper.   

Sincerely, 

Matt Summers, AICP 
Community Development Director 

Community Development Department 
100 N. Midwest Blvd, Midwest City, OK 


	PC-2220 PC Staff Report (Final).pdf
	Public Improvements
	Water
	Sanitary Sewer
	Stormwater
	Street
	Sidewalk
	Easements
	Lighting
	Signage
	Record Drawings, Lien Release, and Bonding





